
MINUTES OF 

FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2019 

PRESENT: Peter F. Murphy, Chairman, Springfield District 

James R. Hart, Commissioner At-Large 

James T. Migliaccio, Lee District 

Timothy J. Sargeant, Commissioner At-Large 

Ellen J. Hurley, Braddock District 

John C. Ulfelder, Dranesville District 

John A. Carter, Hunter Mill District 

Julie M. Strandlie, Mason District 

Walter C. Clarke, Mount Vernon District 

Phillip A. Niedzielski-Eichner, Providence District 

Donte Tanner, Sully District 

ABSENT: Mary D. Cortina, Commissioner At-Large 

II 

The meeting was called to order at 7:34 p.m., by Chairman Peter F. Murphy, in the Board 

Auditorium of the Fairfax County Government Center, 12000 Government Center Parkway, 

Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 

II 

COMMISSION MATTERS 

SE 2018-BR-028 - CLASSIC COTTAGES, LLC  

(Decision Only) (Public Hearing on this application was held on September 12, 2019) 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Hurley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is in regards to the Classic Cottages case 
that we heard late last night. I am going to move to defer the case. This is — well, it became 

obvious just early this week that the — some of the neighbors had not been involved with the 

discussions on this. The — Braddock District Supervisor Cook is holding a meeting on the 30th  of 

September at Old Creek Elementary School at 7:30 to go over — to explain and discuss RPAs, by-
right development, tree preservation, stormwater runoff, all those matters that we that we were 

discussing last night. And then, in view of this Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT WE MOVE THE 

DECISION ONLY FOR SE 2018-BR-028 TO A DATE CERTAIN OF 2 OCTOBER. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Hart. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in favor 

of the motion to defer decision only on SE 2018-BR-028 to a date certain of October 2"d, with 

the record remaining open for written comments, say aye. 
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Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

The motion carried by a vote of 10-0. Commissioner Cortina was absent from the meeting. 

Commissioner Clarke was absent from the vote. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

SSPA 2018-I-1MS — MERRIFIELD SUBURBAN CENTER STUDY  

(Decision Only) (Public Hearing on this application was held on September 11, 2019) 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This action is specific to the Site 

Specific Plan Amendment 2018-I-1MS, Merrifield Suburban Center. Mr. Chairman, if I could, 

I'd like to ask staff to briefly identify the handout that was given to us this evening and just to 

indicate how to — how to read that handout and interpret anything that's — that's reflected there. Is 

that Ms. Van Dam or Ms. Byron? Are you in a position to do that for us? 

Meghan Van Dam, Planning Department, Department of Planning and Development: I am if my 

microphone allows. I'll just hold it. Good evening. Meghan Van Dam with the Department of 

Planning and Development. So, since the — the hearing we have been working with the Planning 

Commissioner to — to put together a handout for you all this evening. This handout is the 

document called Planning Commission handout, with the date September 19th. And it contains 

the complete plan text for the nominated areas that's Land Units I, specifically Sub-Units II, 

Land Unit J, and Land Unit K text within the Merrifield Suburban Center. This is the markup 

containing the strikethrough and underlines of the text that we are — we'll be talking about 

tonight. It is the — the — it is based on the task force recommendation for — that we — that we 

discussed last week that was contained in the staff report addendum. There are a few additional 

changes that the Commissioner will be discussing in the motions and those are indicated — 

additional changes from the task force recommendation in the addendum, those are shown in 

yellow font and bold font in the handout. And they are specifically related to the — the concerns 

and questions that were raised for the Fairview Park North Sub-Unit Ii recommendation and — 

primarily focused on the questions of the number of units and the intensity on the site. Thank 

you. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Thank you, Ms. Van Dam. Could you also just highlight — 

explain the version of that the Commission had before it last week, as part of the public hearing, 

had boxes that represented options for — that the — represented kind of staff's potential options 

for the Commission to consider. What happened to those boxes in relation to the — the handout 

that's before us right now? 
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Ms. Van Dam: Those boxes have been removed. So, this — this is — as we're working through 

this, we felt that the — the task force recommendation was the best place to start because it was 
far more closely resembling that. And so, we have — we have removed the boxes and are no 

longer working with the — the staff recommended — recommended text in the boxes. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: And is it fair to say that the staff recommendation — the 

boxes that — that captures the staff's recommendation was specific to the potential for the 1060 

units versus 840 unit. Again, specific to Fairview Park is — is that the case? That those — the 

changes that could have been captured through those boxes were driven by the difference in 

staff's prospectives of from what the task force recommended. 

Ms. Van Dam: Yes. That is fair. The boxes were both recommending and — and related to the staff 
recommendation for the — for the 1060 maximum potential units for the site and the related 

amenities that would be — that would be part of that. And also, a total — staff had also 

recommended a total square-footage for the development of 1.75 million square feet as an 

alternative. And that has been — that is — we are no longer working with that. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Okay. Good. Thank you. Just wanted to orient the 

Commission. This is — Commissioners, we had a week subsequent to last week's hearing, which 
we heard from a lot of fine citizens with regard to their feedback — giving us feedback on the task 

force's work and also staff's recommendation. I — I think the — what I'd like to do is just indicate 

that we were going through review and considerations of all way up to this last minute. So, I do 
apologize for getting this — my motions to you as late as this evening. But I think based on — 

you'll appreciate the — what I'm recommending in the context of— that I will provide for you at 

this point. And Mr. Chairman, the Board of Supervisors organized over a year ago, consideration 

of a Site Specific Plan Amendment for approximately 203 acres within the Merrifield Suburban 
Center roughly at the intersection of Arlington Boulevard, Route 50, and Interstate 495. The 

study area constitutes two nominations for Comprehensive Plan changes. Those nominations 
came from the INOVA Center for Personalized Health and from Fairview Park. Providence 

Supervisor Linda Smyth, with support from the County Planning and Development staff, 

convened a task force of local residents to evaluate the nominations. The task force was 

composed of representatives from homeowners associations and the Greater Merrifield Business 
Association and they convened in over 26 meetings during a ten month period. Charlie Hall and 
Fran Wallingford ably, very ably I would add, led the task force as its chair and vice chair 

respectively. We heard from both Charlie and Fran during the public hearing and in a subsequent 

communication for the record. I will not delve into the details of the two nominations, nor into 

how the nominations were refined and modified and improved upon, in my opinion, during this 
process, as we have already been exposed to that background at last week's public hearing. 

Instead, Mr. Chairman, I want to emphasize the importance of the recommended changes to the 

Comp Plan before us tonight and to highlight a few key points that have been the subject of 

debate subsequent to the delivery of the task force's report, and the staffs analysis and 

recommendations. The proposed plan amendment before us is a decision tonight — before as — as 

a decision tonight has the potential to have far-reaching effects for the Merrifield area, the 

County, Northern Virginia, and in my view, the Commonwealth. The proposed plan proposed by 
Inova Center for Personalized Health envisions a world-class facility that would bring critical 

health resources and ground-breaking research to the County and the region. The project would 
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include major partnerships with well-regarded institutions, such as the University of Virginia, in 

a location that has natural synergies with existing institutions, and it would preserve and make 

public a substantial natural, wooded place in the Merrifield area for the community to enjoy. The 

Fairview Park plan, the second nomination, proposes to reinvigorate an office park that was once 

Fairfax County's premier office park to make it more competitive in the changing office market 

and strive to better connect an area historically cut off by the Beltway into the heart of 

Merrifield. These are major endeavors, and as such, staff, the Merrifield Task Force, nominators, 

and the public rigorously analyzed and debated these nominations, their benefits, and their 

impacts over a year, plus — a year plus of intensive work, especially in the concluding months. 

There were many questions raised, most notably about the transportation impact and 

environmental considerations and, remarkably, these many hours of discussions resulted in 

substantial alignment on the recommendations for Plan language changes to accommodate both 

the Inova and Fairview Park nominations. The one outstanding issue that remains tonight relates 

to the number of dwelling units and the total intensity on Fairview Park, north of Route 50. The 

task force and the immediate neighbors have expressed significant concern about the type of 

place and level of activity that would be created based on the change in land use, scale of the 

development, and the impacts on the local roadways. Staff recognized these concerns and — and 

proposed a compromise, as published in the addendum, that presented a reduced total square-

footage for the development, which was below their original recommendation, but kept the staff-

recommended number of units. The compromise was thought to reduce the size of the 

development, but better support the retail, civic, and cultural uses, which would, in turn, better 

amenitize the existing office park and the — and the community than the task force 

recommendation. Now, I can understand and have understood both perspectives, and after 

consideration I would like to propose another approach to the Planning Commission that, I 

believe, would strike a balance between the need to manage the number of new residential units 

with the sustained vitality of the place called Fairview Park. From my perspective, Mr. 

Chairman, we should be careful that the amended Comp Plan language not inadvertently become 

a barrier to mixed-use development in Fairview Park. I am convinced after sitting through a 

number of task force meetings and hearing presentations from retail, housing, and office 

development experts that the introduce — that introducing mixed-use development into Fairview 

Park is essential to its ability to sustain its economic vitality. My approach — proposed approach, 

which I — I will move tonight, caps the number of units on the Fairview Park site at a maximum 

of 840 units, as the task force recommends, yet increases the total square-footage of the 

development to a higher number than recommended. Specifically, Mr. Chairman, I propose that 

the allowed square-footage be increased by 180,000 square feet, from the task force 

recommended 1.42 million square feet to 1.6 million square feet. This approach would respond 

to the task force and the adjacent community's concerns regarding the number of allowable units, 

thereby limiting the residential population and overall density, while providing the property 

owner with additional flexibility to consider larger residential units, additional retail uses, or 

something more novel, like the small boutique office uses that we are seeing proposed in other 

centers within the County and would add workers to the residential retail mixed-use. In 

consideration how the Comp Plan changes for Fairview Park would lay out on the land itself, I 

also believe that the language about the building heights should be scaled down to better reflect 

community concerns for building mass — building mass, density, and scale of development. In 

this regard Mr. Chairman, the Merrifield Plan speaks to establishing a distinctive skyline — 

skyline, to which Fairview Park contributes. My proposal for reducing the allowable building 
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height for the mixed-use option does not change this expectation, but does decrease the 
allowable building height from 18 stories or 230 feet to 15 stories and 180 feet. The taller 
building height makes sense with larger — with the higher square-foot total. However, to best 
conform to the recommended uses, better compatibility will be achieved with buildings that are 
not taller than or less than the existing office buildings near Route 50, which are fifteen stories. 
Finally, Mr. Chairman, the Site Specific Amendment process introduced a number of constraints 
that I believe warrant changes for future such Plan Amendment efforts. A key one for me was the 
inability of the task force to consider the implications of future development proposals in a more 
regional context. This more regional view is particularly pertinent to the consideration of impacts 
associated with bringing a significantly larger number of people into the Merrifield area. Another 
important constraint of this process is that the analysis of the two nominations were significantly 
dependent upon the nominators' vision for the future use of their site and did not necessarily 
account for the broader vision that we as County leaders should maintain. This is particularly — 
particularly pertinent to the matter of transportation. So, after consideration of the main motion, 
Mr. Chairman, I will therefore offer five follow-on motions for Commission and Board 
consideration that, if approved, will continue to examine questions that were raised during the 
task force process, but were not able to be more fully explored due to time and process 
constraints. So, Mr. Chairman, if I could move to the main motion. 

Chairman Murphy: Please. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS THE ADOPTION OF 
THE RECOMMENDED PLAN TEXT FOR SSPA 2018-I-1MS TO ADD AN OPTION FOR AN 
ACADEMIC AND RESEARCH CAMPUS UP TO AN INTENSITY OF 0.7 FAR AND A 
FUTURE EXPANSION UP TO A 1.0 FAR ON THE ICPH SITE IN — IN LAND UNIT K OF 
THE MERRIFIELD SUBURBAN CENTER, IF CERTAIN CONDITIONS ARE MET, AND TO 
ADD AN OPTION FOR MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT ON THE FAIRVIEW PARK IN SUB-
UNIT 11 — I'M SORRY II, WITH A MAXIMUM RESIDENTIAL COMPONENT OF UP TO 
840 UNITS AND A TOTAL — TOTAL SQUARE-FOOTAGE FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 
OPTION UP TO 1.6 MILLION SQUARE FEET. RETAIL USE ALSO WOULD BE 
RECOMMENDED IN ADDITION TO THE PLANNED OFFICE USE IN SUB-UNIT J. 
CONDITIONS RELATED TO TRANSPORTATION, THE ENVIRONMENT, PUBLIC — 
PUBLIC FACILITIES, AND PARKS AND RECREATION ARE ASSOCIATED WITH EACH 
OF THESE DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS. MINOR EDITORIAL REVISIONS ARE ALSO 
PROPOSED. THIS RECOMMENDATION, BASED ON THE STAFF REPORT ADDENDUM, 
IS CONTAINED IN MY HANDOUT DATED SEPTEMBER 19TH, 2019 AND DESCRIBED 
BY STAFF PRIOR TO CONSIDERATION. 

Chairman Murphy: Is that it? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: This is the motion. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. Is there a second? 

Commissioner Hurley: I'll second. 
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Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Ms. Hurley. Discussion? 

Commissioner Tanner: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. 

Commissioner Tanner: I was not present for the public hearing. I will not be voting on this one. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Migliaccio: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. Mr. Migliaccio. 

Commissioner Migliaccio: I also was not present for the public hearing, but did have a chance to 

review the tape and will be voting. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman? Just some questions for clarification. The reference to 

the increase in — in 180,000 square feet while meeting the — the task force recommendation for 

840 units. Is that 180,000 included — is that part of the formula within — within on line 106 Land 

Use for the first bullet, where it says will not exceed a total of approximately 1.6 million square 

feet? In other words is it — is it — does it still fall under the 2.1, is that what the thinking is? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: That's correct. 

Commissioner Sargeant: So that... 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: So as currently — in the current plan, the total square-footage 

allowed is 2.1 million... 

Commissioner Sargeant: Yeah. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: This would reduce it by 500,000. 

Commissioner Sargeant: But the — the reference to increase — I'm — I'm asking for the point of 

clarification to make sure that advertising is not necessary. You know, that was my concern. So, 

if I can get clarification from staff. 

Barbara Byron, Director, Department of Planning and Development: Yes. We would not have to 

re-advertise. This is included within the scope of the advertisement. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 
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Commissioner Sargeant: Just from my understanding. Why are we increasing 180,000 when 

we're decreasing from 2.1? 

Ms. Byron: So, part of the difference in the — in the numerics is that, in working with the 

applicant, they have always said that their unit size was based more on 1100 square feet per unit. 
We had used the smaller size. So that accounted for a small part of it. The rest of it— we had a 

discussion in which we thought it would be really advantageous to allow a different kind of use 
there like the Commissioner mentioned. Something like a boutique office use to further 

amenitize and activate the main street. So that accounted for about 80,000. And when you add 

them up that's the difference. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. So, but no advertisement. Could I ask one more question, Mr. 

Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Sure. 

Commissioner Sargeant: In — in the motion, I think there was a reference to if certain conditions 
are met. Is that too specific, as those conditions are not identified, would criteria work better? 

Ms. Van Dam: It — are you — so the conditions are primarily related to transportation... 

Commissioner Sargeant: Yeah. I believe that was the section of the — Commissioner Niedzielski-
Eichner's motion regarding if certain conditions are met. 

Ms. Van Dam: Right. Are those — they're outlined in the handout... 

Commissioner Sargeant: Which handout? 

Ms. Van Dam: I'm sorry. 

Commissioner Sargeant: We got a bunch of stuff here just before the meeting. 

Ms. Van Dam: In the Planning Commission handout. 

Commissioner Sargeant: This one? 

Ms. Van Dam: There are a number of conditions — let me turn to... 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: These conditions, just as you're looking for that — these 

conditions are ones that are specified in the language that would be incorporated into the Comp 

Plan. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. 

Ms. Van Dam: Right. 
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Commissioner Sargeant: But you mentioned in the handout. So, are you talking about this one? 

Chairman Murphy: Yeah. 

Ms. Van Dam: Yes. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. 

Ms. Van Dam: That is correct. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. Alright. Well that's what I wanted to clarify then. 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Ulfelder. Are you done? Okay. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: I — I had a question in — in your lead-up to the actual motion, you 

mentioned that you will have — you have — there's been a handout with a number of follow-on 

motions. And my question is, are these motions that the task force requested or suggested or 

recommended based on their efforts? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: No, expect perhaps informally. But no — no one specifically 

asked for a motion — any of the — the five motions. They were matters that came up as part of the 

discussion — the task force discussion amongst themselves. But because of the scale and scope of 

— the constraints of the process didn't get considered by the task force. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Well, that's a part of— I guess that was a part of what was making me 

ask. Which particular constraints? I mean we had a fairly extensive task force process and if 

there are still a number of issues that are sort of hanging out that need some additional task 

forces or staff work or whatever that was not done at the time or as part of the process of the task 

force, I have a little difficulty with that to be honest. That it's — it's sort of it's — it's — I have a 

little difficulty with it. And so... 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Let me give you an example if you — if I could. So the task 

force's work was to review the nomination of the Inova Center for Personalized Health and the 

Fairview Park. If you look at the — that geographically, that's only a — the southern portion of the 

Merrifield Suburban Center... 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Right. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: As the task force's work progressed, one of the key 

considerations the task force had is what — how will these nominations affect traffic and 

movement of people through — through these areas? The staff was able to provide, and the 

nominators, were able to provide transportation analysis specific to the area — that geographic 

area. But by virtue of the process, both by time and by scope — did not look at the — was not — 

were not able to look at the transportation implications and potential options with a broader view. 

Let's say for example from the AC — ACPH as an anchor on a corridor all the way to Tysons 

Corner. And the implications for Gallows as a corridor, which was a feature of a consideration 
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but couldn't be viewed in a broader — on a broader basis. And Mr. Biesiadny, if— if you wanna — 

or Ms. Byron? 

Ms. Byron: Barbara Byron, Director of Department of Planning and Development. This has 

become very normal for us with large planning studies. If you recall, when we adopted Tysons, 

we had twenty follow-on motions. The same thing happened with a little — somewhat fewer, but 

almost as many when we adopted Reston. And we also had follow-on motions when we adopted 

Embark Richmond Highway. So, this has become a kind of a norm for us when the work is 

completed, we know there's follow-on work. For example, this has a funding — if you looked at 

this, what the Commissioner is suggesting is that we have a funding plan. We did the exact same 

thing for the three other plan amendments that I referenced. These are things that we feel are not 

necessary to have in place before the adoption of the plan, but there are things that really are 

important for us to nail down into the future. I would also say, and I think this was part of your 

question, having sat to more recent months of the task force, everything that is referenced in 

these follow-on motions was definitely a topic that they considered and I think if you were asked 

— would ask them, these are things that resonate with them and that they would like to have 

pursued. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: And I would add that Madame — Mr. Chairman that the — I 

did ask for feedback from the chair and the vice chair of the task force, which I received and 

incorporated their feedback. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. Mr. Sargeant. 

Commissioner Sargeant: I — I appreciate the — the explanation. I think the one question — the five 

follow-on motions and the main motion that we have on the table right now. Does that main 

motion and thus this report stand independent of those other — of those other five motions? 

Ms. Byron: We believe it does. Yes. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Alright. So — so I wanted to make sure that this — my clarification since 

I hadn't seen any of this. I wanted to make sure that this — this report and all the work you've 

done and the task force has done stands on its own independent of these motions... 

Ms. Byron: Yes. 

Commissioner Sargeant: So, it is not — these do not serve as — as crutches, borders, whatever... 

Ms. Byron: Yes. 

Commissioner Sargeant: But individual. Okay. Fine. Thank you. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: And they build on rather than counter the task force's work. 
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Commission Sargeant: Okay. Thank you. 

Chairman Murphy: Further discussion of the motion? All those in favor of the motion to 

recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it adopt SSPA 2018-1-1MS, Merrifield Suburban 

Center Study, as articulated this evening by Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? The motion carries. Abstained Mr. Tanner and Mr. Migliaccio. 

Commissioner Migliaccio: No. I... 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Migliaccio's good. You abstained. Okay. One abstention. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Aren't we glad that I don't have twenty follow-on motions? 

Chairman Murphy: I thought you did already. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Wait a minute... 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: So — so these follow-on motions. The first motion is the 

Merrifield Suburban Center Multimodal Transportation Opportunities. Due to the successful 

evolution of the Dunn Loring and Mosaic core areas of the Merrifield Suburban Center, the 

projected scale and scope of the Inova Center for Personalized Health, and the potential 

development of Fairview Park, there is an increasing need to improve mobility and accessibility 

within and through the Merrifield Suburban Center. Additionally, opportunities exist for the 

County to introduce innovative technologies to assist in mitigating the growth in the — in traffic 

in the area. Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DIRECT STAFF TO CONDUCT A 

COMPREHENSIVE STUDY OF MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION OPPORTUNITIES IN 

AND AROUND THE MERRIFIELD SUBURBAN CENTER, WITH A FOCUS ON THE 

GALLOWS ROAD CORRIDOR FROM TYSONS TO ANNANDALE AND PARALLEL 

ROADWAYS, SUCH AS ESKRIDGE ROAD TO THE WEST AND FAIRVIEW PARK DRIVE 

TO THE EAST, INCLUDING EVALUATING HOW THE COUNTY MAY BE ABLE TO USE 

INNOVATIVE AND EVOLVING TECHNOLOGIES TO ENHANCE MOBILITY AND 

ACCESSIBILITY, AND PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THIS ANALYSIS. AND FURTHER, MR. 

CHAIRMAN, THAT THE STAFF BE DIRECTED TO ENGAGE POTENTIALLY AFFECTED 

COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT THE CONDUCT OF THIS STUDY. And I appreciate a 

second. 
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Chairman Murphy: Is there a second? 

Commissioner Hart: Second for discussion. 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Hart seconds the motion. Discussion? 

Commissioner Hart: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. I'm sorry. 

Commissioner Hart: Thank you. I — I don't have a problem with the — gist of the motion. And 

what I — what I was going to suggest was perhaps somewhere in this or the others, it isn't just 

potentially affected communities, it may be interaction with appropriate Planning Commission 

committees. I think that's the intention, even if these things don't necessarily require a public 

hearing with the Planning Commission. For instance, the Transportation Committee or possibly 

the Tysons Committee or there — maybe — I'm — I'm reading too much into it, but — but it would 

certainly be appropriate if not essential for appropriate PC committees to be in this process at — 
at some level. And it — the — I don't think the motion says that but I — I — it — it — I don't know 

whether to add it in the last line or it's — it's another point. But that idea I — I think would help. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: I think a broad — the — the — my position on this is that we 

need to broadly involve the community. And — and by limiting the language to affect the 

communities I think is cause — is the cause for that problem. In addition to the Planning 

Commission, of course, there are other organizations who represent a large group of individuals 

with have — with that which — who would have an interest in this — this work. I think for 

example, the — the bicycle associations and others. So, can we stipulate for the record that the 

idea — the use of the word affected communities is to be broadly construed to include those — 

those who have both responsibility as well as a strong interest in this particular area? 

Commissioner Hart: I think so. Ms. Byron, if— if that — if you could confirm that that's good 

enough for me. 

Ms. Byron: We were wondering if you would consider changing the word to stakeholders? And 
that's a broader term. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: I'm comfortable with stakeholders. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. — Mr. Hart? 

Commissioner Hart: Yes. No, if— if it's fine with Ms. Byron, it's fine with me. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: So, let me amend the motion to — to... 

Chairman Murphy: Alright. 
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Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: For that last sentence to reflect that. Mr. Chairman, THAT 

STAFF BE DIRECTED TO ENGAGE POTENTIALLY — POTENTIAL STAKEHOLDERS 

THROUGHOUT THE CONDUCT OF THIS STUDY. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. Mr. Sargeant. 

Commissioner Sargeant: My I — May I ask a question on the motion? In the section, one, two, 

three — three lines from the bottom where it's be able to use innovative and effective — evolving 

technologies to enhance mobility and accessibility and provide funding for this analysis. Do you 

mean — is it for funding the actual study of these solutions or for the — for the recommendations 

that — that come from the study? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: I could see the awkwardness of that. It's — it's the — to fund 

the analysis. 

Commission Sargeant: Okay. Did — did we have — the only reason I'm wondering about that is 

cause I don't — probably done this — when we've done those types of studies elsewhere, or 

you've done those types of studies. I don't recall motions at the Planning Commission level that 

— that suggest that those studies have to be funded. 

Mr. Biesiadny: Tom Biesiadny with the Department of Transportation. You're correct that we 

haven't necessarily used that language in the past, but it is one of the lessons learned that we've 

used — we've learned from the past. So, it is — it is a little bit different than some of the ones 

you've seen before. But the funding piece is pretty critical because these are not just staff studies, 

but they will take consultants support for example. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. I see your point. Alright. Thank you. 

Chairman Murphy: Further discussion? Ms. Strandlie. 

Commissioner Strandlie: Thank you. The reference to the focus on Gallows Road corridor from 

Tysons to Annandale. I think we need to more definitively define Annandale because Annandale 

starts just shortly after three — 495. Are we talking about downtown Annandale? Annandale also 

extends through the Camelot area. How can we say the greater Annandale area to incorporate a 

wider swath of potential study? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Let's — let's — I — I agree to make that change to... 

Commissioner Strandlie: Thank you. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: The motion. 

Chairman Murphy: We okay staff with that? Okay. Further discussion? No. Ms. Hurley. I'm 

sorry. 
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Commissioner Hurley: Back to the previous point. This is a parse question and it's been agreed 
to provide funding should be added. But who is it? Going back to the original. Is staff is to 
provide funding or we recommend the Board of Supervisors provide funding? Who is it — who is 
— parsing this sentence, I can't figure out who it is that supposed to provide funding? 

Mr. Biesiadny: Commissioner Hurley, when we get to the Board, when this case — assuming the 
Planning Commissioner approves it and gets to the Board, we're going to add another follow-on 

motion for Supervisor Smyth that specifically deals with the funding piece and providing for the 
funding. 

Commissioner Hurley: Alright. So you mean — again, I'm trying to parse the very long sentence 

here. So you mean and this Board to provide funding? 

Mr. Biesiadny: Yes. So this — this is just indicating that funding needs to be provided. When 
Supervisor Smyth makes her motion, she will be more specific about how that funding would be 
achieved. 

Commissioner Hurley: I'm still lost, but... 

Commissioner Sargeant: What Mr. — Mr..... 

Commissioner Hurley: Everybody else understands. Great. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman I believe... 

Commissioner Strandlie: It's just [inaudible] specify... 

Commissioner Sargeant: I believe what — what we're reading now is that we are recommending 
that staff conduct a comprehensive study and that the Board of Supervisors provide funding for 

this analysis. Because it does reference... 

Chairman Murphy: Right. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Our recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. 

Chairman Murphy: Yup. Nodding? We nodding? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Yes. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Yeah. I mean I think the point is we don't want to send something up 

that — for the Board that were act on that would need funding without addressing the fact that 
funding is needed. In other words, it's sort of like go what the Federal Government does with 
unfunded requirements for the States. And I think that's the point. We're trying to make sure that 
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they understand that if they agree with the follow-on motion that it will need some specific 

funding. 

Commissioner Sargeant: And — and Mr. Chairman, to — to add to that and Commissioner 

Strandlie's comments. Do we need to — to better define the end of the study in Annandale so 

we're not asking for the Board to fund — we don't get into funding truly. Is Annandale too broad 

for description of a — of a analysis? I mean, you're just gonna keep on going. 

Mr. Biesiadny: With the clarification that was added to — to say the greater Annandale area. I 

think we're fine. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. Fine. Good. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. Further discussion of the motion? All those in favor of the motion, 

follow-on motion one, Merrifield — Merrifield Suburban Center Multimodal Transportation 

Opportunities as articulated by Commissioner Niedzielski (sic) and amended by members of the 

Planning Commission this evening, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. One abstention. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. Chairman, since the Capital Beltway, 1-495, bifurcates 

the Merrifield Suburban Center... 

Chairman Murphy: Why don't we identify this as follow-on motion two just for the record. 

Okay. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Yeah. Follow-on motion that's — excuse me. Follow-on 

motion two. Merrifield Suburban Center East-West Connectivity. Since the Capital Beltway, I-

495, bifurcates the Merrifield Suburban Center to address future growth around the Inova 

campus, Fairview Park, and the Merrifield Suburban Center, it would be advantageous to 

understand how the areas east and west of 495 can be better connected. Therefore, Mr. Chairman, 

I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS DIRECT STAFF TO STUDY THE BARRIERS TO CONNECTIVITY IN THE 

MERRIFIELD SUBURBAN CENTER CREATED BY INTERSTATE-495, OPPORTUNITIES 

TO MITIGATE THE BARRIERS, AND OPTIONS FOR IMPROVED MULTIMODAL 

MOBILITY BETWEEN THE PLANNED LAND USES ON THE EAST AND WEST SIDES 

OF THE INTERSTATE. And further, Mr. Chairman, THAT STAFF BE DIRECTED TO 

ENGAGE POTENTIALLY — TO ENGAGE STAKEHOLDERS THROUGHOUT THE 

CONDUCT OF THIS STUDY. 

Commissioner Migliaccio: Second. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

14 



COMMISSION MATTERS September 19, 2019 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Migliaccio and Mr. Hart. Is there a discussion of that 

motion? Ms. Hurley. 

Commissioner Hurley: Just a point is that the interstate divides neighborhoods throughout. It's 
not just Merrifield. But if we start here and we come up with some good ideas that I can — might 
help every place that — whether it's the Beltway or 395 or 1-66, they are definite impediments to 

communities. So whatever lessons learned it could be broadened. 

Chairman Murphy: Further discussion? 

Commissioner Hart: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. Mr. Hart. Maybe I missed something but, we're asking the Board to 
figure out how to pay for the first one, but not — mean is — is the funding that we're paying for — 

for all of the studies is did — we're not — isn't this — wouldn't this require to be funded just as 
much as the other? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Yes. 

Commissioner Hart: Should we have a parallel clause about the — how we're gonna fund it or we 

just — like we just did? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Yes. I agree to that... 

Commissioner Hart: Alright. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Amendment. 

Commissioner Hart: Thank you. 

Chairman Murphy: Further discussion? All those in favor of the motion on follow-on motion 

two, Merrifield Suburban Center East-West Connectivity, as articulated tonight by Mr. 

Niedzielski-Eichner and amended by the Planning Commission, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Mr. Niedzielski (sic) — and one — same — same 
abstention. Okay. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Follow-on motion three, 

Merrifield Suburban Center Transportation Funding Plan. Implementation of the transportation 
improvements proposed in the Comprehensive Plan is critical to the health and success of the 

Merrifield Suburban Center. The traditional method of funding these transportation 

improvements include federal, state, regional, and County sources. However, some combination 
of public and private sector funding may be necessary to cover the costs associated with these 

15 



COMMISSION MATTERS September 19, 2019 

improvements and to expedite implementation. So, therefore, Mr. Chairman, I — I move that — 

I'm lost in my own motion. 

Chairman Murphy: Me too. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Yup. 

Commissioner Hart: Due to the complexity of issues... 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Page three... 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Okay, I got it. Due to the complexity of issues involved, Mr. 

Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DIRECT STAFF TO DEVELOP A FUNDING PLAN FOR THE 

TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS RECOMMENDED IN THE 

MERRIFIELD SUBURBAN CENTER COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, IN AN EFFORT TO 

EXPEDITIOUSLY ADVANCE THE PROJECTS. THESE IMPROVEMENTS CAN PROVIDE 

BENEFITS IN ADVANCE OF THE IMPLEMENTATION OF ADDITIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT. THE FUNDING PLAN SHOULD INCLUDE STRATEGIES FOR 

FINANCING THE PUBLIC SHARE OF INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS AND 

FACILITATING COOPERATIVE FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE PRIVATE 

SECTOR. THIS EFFORT SHOULD SPECIFICALLY ADDRESS AS A PRIORITY THE 

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE BRIDGE AND INCLUDE THE 1-49 —1-495 BRANDED 

RAMPS IN THE REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND PROGRAMING 

DOCUMENTS, SUCH AS THE NORTHERN VIRGINIA TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY'S TRANSACTION PLAN AND THE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

BOARD'S CONSTRAINED LONG RANGE PLAN. IN PREPARING THE FUNDING PLAN, 

STAFF SHOULD INCLUDE FUNDING FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE 

MULTIMODAL STUDIES REQUESTED IN FOLLOW-ON MOTIONS ONE AND TWO. SO 

MOVED. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Hart. Is there a discussion of that motion? Mr. Sargeant. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman, I'm just looking at the last — and preparing — and I'm — 

in preparing the funding plan staff should include funding for the recommendations of the 

multimodal studies requested in follow-on motions one and two. I'm just trying to get the order 

of— the order of the sequence here. I mean we've — we've asked them to fund this the first 

motion for multimodal transportation. Are we asking this collectively or — or how — how do you 

envision the request for the development of funding requests to proceed? I'm a little... 

Mr. Biesiadny: So, that — that sentence is clarifying that not only is the funding plan that we 

developed to incorporate the recommended improvements that are included in the 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment that you're acting upon tonight, but also to include funding for 
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any additional improvements that might be identified in the studies that are envisioned on 

follow-on motion one or follow-on motion two. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. So... 

Mr. Biesiadny: So that the funding plan is comprehensive and not just focused on the — the 

changes that you're approving this evening. 

Commissioner Sargeant: So, one and two fund this — the analysis, three funds the recommended 
solutions. 

Mr. Biesiadny: Yes. Three is the big one that would fund all the improvements. The actual 

improvements. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Got it. Alright. Thank you. 

Chairman Murphy: Further discussion? All those in favor of the motion to recommend to the 
Board of Supervisors that it adopt follow-on motion three, Merrifield Suburban Center 

Transportation Funding Plan, as articulated by Mr. Niedzielski-Eichner, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Mr. Niedzielski-Eichner. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Follow-on motion four, 

Merrifield Suburban Center Transportation Management Association. The Merrifield Suburban 

Center Comprehensive Plan Areawide Recommendations recognizes the need for Public/Private 
cooperation in — to identify, fund, and promote alternatives that reduce single-occupancy auto 
trips in the area. The nominators have committed to participating in this type of coordination, 

which is reflected in the recommended Plan text. I believe Inova understands the benefits of 

forming a Merrifield Suburban Center Transportation Management Association and will certainly 
need to be the catalyst for forming these partnerships. Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

DIRECT STAFF TO WORK WITH THE NOMINATORS, OTHER PROPERTY OWNERS, 
AND THE SURROUNDING COMMERCIAL, RETAIL, AND RESIDENTIAL 

COMMUNITIES TO FORM A TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION TO 

FACILITATE STRATEGIES TO REDUCE SINGLE-OCCUPANCY AUTO TRIP DEMAND 

WITHIN THE MERRIFIELD SUBURBAN CENTER, INCLUDING THE 

IMPLEMENTATION OF A CIRCULATOR SYSTEM. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Hart. Is there a discussion of that motion? Yes. Ms. 

Strandlie. 
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Commissioner Strandlie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. There are areas just beyond the Merrifield 

Suburban Center — for example, planned new development near Grand Park Plaza where a 

circulator service would also benefit to bringing and — and those communities into bringing 

workers and patients and users at the retail to the area. So, I'm wondering if Merrifield Suburban 

Center should be expanded in scope. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: I'll ask staff. The suburban center of— the center — or it's 

defined within the Comprehensive Plan, so I'd just ask staff's prospective on that. 

Mr. Biesiadny: Commissioner the — the Merrifield Suburban Center is fairly well-defined in the — 

in the Comprehensive Plan. If there is a desire to go beyond that, we probably would need 

language that says that the intention is to go beyond that area. 

Commissioner Strandlie: Can you recommend some language for that? The greater Merrifield 

Suburban... 

Chairman Murphy: It worked the first time. 

Mr. Biesiadny: If you're specifically interested in the Grand Park Shopping Center — or we — 

Grand Park Plaza — we could specifically reference that. If it's broader than that then... 

Commissioner Strandlie: I think it's broader than that. Definitely that area. The — the 

neighborhoods in that area. The Grand Park Plaza is a focus point, which would be a good spot 

for a circulator when we certainly discuss that when we approve the Comprehensive Plans for 

that — redevelopment of that shopping area. But there is also other areas where a circulator could 

benefit as well. 

Mr. Biesiadny: What if we added to the end of a circulator system, in developing the circulator 

system connections to activity areas or activity centers outside of the Merrifield Suburban 

Transportation Center should also be considered. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: I'm comfortable with that. 

Chairman Murphy: Ms. Byron? 

Mr. Biesiadny: Other potential destinations and activity centers. 

Chairman Murphy: Yeah. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Can you read that one more time please? 

Mr. Biesiadny: In — in considering the development of the circulator system consideration to be — 

should be given to connections to potential destinations surrounding the Merrifield Suburban 

Center. 
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Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Ms. Strandlie — Commissioner Strandlie. You're okay with 

that? 

Commissioner Strandlie: Yes. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Murphy: Alright. Mr. Sargeant, on that point. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Just one question. I like the idea of the Transportation Management 

Association — provides a big strategic picture of everything. I'd just like to understand a little bit 
how — how it interacts with the TDMs that we approve for individual applications. 

Mr. Biesiadny: So, each individual applicant as they come through the process through their 
proffers commits to reductions in the single occupant vehicle trips. As individual groups, they 
would have the responsibility to implement programs or just telework or alternative work 

schedules. Things like that. Carpooling incentives. However, if they work to together, they — one 
applicant with their neighbors, oftentimes they can achieve greater reductions by working 
together as opposed to working individually. So the idea of a Transportation Management 

Association is to get a number of property owners in the same general area to work together on 
these reductions with the intention that they're going to be more successful working together 

than if each individual property owner is trying to achieve these goals on their own. 

Commissioner Sargeant: With — with the management association established area — areawide 

goals for that particular project? 

Mr. Biesiadny: No, the — the goals would be established through the rezoning process of the 

proffers that are approved by the Board of Supervisors. The Transportation Management 

Association would just be assisting those property owners who — whoever decides to be members 
in achieving the goals. But they would not be approving a specific goal. That would be done 

through the proffers. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. Thank you. 

Ms. Byron: We have an example of that. So, in Tysons, the individual applications all provided 
proffers for the TDMs. But then through the auspices of the Tysons partnership working with 
DOT, they have a TMA that actually takes care of the business of the various individual groups 

who what to join up. And, as Tom said, there are a lot of efficiencies both cost and otherwise 
with having one group in charge of it. Plus, then that way the individuals don't have to have their 
own staff to do it. It just makes life a lot easier if you have a group doing it. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Got it. Alright. Thank you. 

Chairman Murphy: Ms. Hurley. 
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Commissioner Hurley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The — back to the question of the involvement 

of Annandale whatever, you're only taking about being involved in the circulator, you don't — 

you're not trying to have Annandale, Grand Plaza, or whatever be members of the management 

association. Is that correct? I mean the... 

Commissioner Strandlie: I think there's part of the study... 

Commissioner Hurley: The motion is about the management association. You're not trying to get 

them to be members of the association. You're just trying to get them to be added on to the 

circulator— I'm just trying to put the goal here. 

Commissioner Strandlie: I think so. Yeah. 

Commissioner Hurley: Just to be part of the circulator. Not to be part of the association. Okay. 

And then, as I read this, the whole goal of this association is to reduce single occupancy vehicle 

trips. That's their only goal. They're not worried about anything else except to reduce single 

occupancy automobile trips. 

Mr. Biesiadny: Well, that's their... 

Commissioner Hurley: It seems like a fairly limited goal. 

Mr. Biesiadny: That would be their principal purpose. Now if the — if the members of the 

association decided that they wanted the association to do other things in addition to that, that 

would be up to them. 

Commissioner Hurley: I mean all those... 

Mr. Biesiadny: But the principal purpose would be to assist in reducing single occupant vehicle 

trips. 

Commissioner Hurley: It seems like the — the previous motion about encouraging mitigating the 

barrier across the beltway excreta, with — would be part of it. That's why I'm trying to — it just 

seems like a rather narrow goal. But if you're all happy with that, that's fine with me. 

Chairman Murphy: All right. Further discussion? Okay all those in favor of the — to recommend 

to the Board of Supervisors that it adopt follow-on motion four, Merrifield Suburban Center 

Transportation Management Association as articulated by Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner 

and amended by members of the Commission, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. One abstention. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. Chairman, last follow-on motion number five, 

Merrifield Areawide Schools Assessment. A number of schools, Mr. Chairman, serve the 
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Merrifield Suburban Center, Falls Church, Marshall, and Woodson High Schools, Luther 
Jackson, Kilmer, and Frost Middle Schools, and Shrevewood, Fairhill, Camelot, Pine Spring, 
Mantua, Stenwood, and Westlawn Elementary Schools. During the SSPA analysis, the Site 
Specific Plan Amendment analysis, it was recognized that future projections for School Year 
2023 and 2024 show deficits at Falls Church, Woodson, Kilmer, Shrevewood, Mantua, and Pine 
Spring. The current plan for the Merrifield Suburban Center recommends that the school 
capacity is anticipated to be met through the planned expansion of current school facilities. 
However, Fairfax County Public Schools have limited sites in the Merrifield Suburban Center on 
which to expand. Other solutions to address school capacity beyond program — beyond program 
changes, temporary or modular classrooms, building additions may need to include new school 

construction, boundary changes, or more innovative solutions such as the repurposing of older 
underutilized buildings. But these are beyond the scope of this particular motion. This particular 
motion is limited to land use and Comp Plan matters. So the motion is to — in order to understand 
future capacity projections, capacity needs, and their land use and comprehensive planning 
implications, emphasis on land use and comprehensive planning implications, I MOVE THAT 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

DIRECT STAFF FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT TO 
COORDINATE WITH STAFF FROM FAIRFAX COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOL, OFFICE OF 
FACILITIES PLANNING SERVICES, ON AN EVALUATION OF FUTURE BUILD-OUT OF 

THE MERRIFIELD SUBURBAN CENTER PLAN THAT WOULD DETERMINE 

ANTICIPATED STUDENT MEMBERSHIP AND SCHOOL CAPACITY NEEDS, AND 

WHETHER THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN THE PLAN WOULD ADEQUATELY 

ADDRESS THE CAPACITY NEED IN THE FUTURE OR WHETHER ALTERNATIVE 
GUIDANCE IS NEEDED. AND FURTHER, MR. CHAIRMAN, THAT STAFF BE DIRECTED 
TO ENGAGE POTENTIALLY AFFECTED — TO ENGAGE STAKEHOLDERS 

THROUGHOUT THE CONDUCT OF THIS EVALUATION. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Hart. Discussion? 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Murphy: Ms. Hurley and then Mr. Ulfelder. And then Ms. Strandlie. 

Commissioner Hurley: At this point, as I warned Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner, I am 

strongly opposed to — it is not the job of the Planning Commission, nor the planning staff, nor the 
Board of Supervisors to tell the School Board how to handle their capacity projections, their 
capacity needs or any of their other — if they want to do boundary changes or build more schools, 
whatever, that's a School Board prerogative. We have an elected School Board and I will 

strongly vote no on this. 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Ulfelder and Ms. Strandlie. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: I — I would ask — just coming back where it was at the beginning. Has 

this been discussed with the — the Fairfax County School folks? 
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Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Yes. I asked the staff to use — review this language with 

them and I'll — I'll ask Ms. Van Dam to elaborate on what the response was. This — this was not 

the School Board. Just to be — to be clear. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: I understand that. But — but it's the facility staff. I understand that but 

the question's the same. 

Ms. Van Dam: Yes. We've been working with them throughout the — the study. And in fact, they 

were the ones that were — began to — began to suggest that this approach may be needed to 

address how the — how we're looking at schools within the Merrifield area. Part of the 

constraints of the SSA — SSPA process is really looking very narrowly at the implications of the 

nominations and the sites. But if the question's really are about how — how — what is happening 

in the schools in the broader area, it's really hard to negotiate that question with the constraints of 

the Plan Amendment. So, this is something that has been discussed with them and they are very 

much interested in — in working through. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Have we had discussions with them about Tysons or Reston? 

Ms. Van Dam: At this time, no. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: For a similar study? 

Ms. Van Dam: Right. I — you know this was — this was really for — these conversations were 

focused on Merrifield. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: I mean, I think. Okay. 

Commissioner Hart: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Ms. Strandlie and then Mr. Hart. 

Commissioner Strandlie: I just wanted to mention that we reviewed the School Board's CIP. And 

in the last CIP we definitely made recommendations that were approved with suggestions on 

how to handle capacity. And I did want to mention that not all the schools are in the Merrifield 

Planning Area. Specifically Falls Church is right outside. 

Commissioner Hurley: Woodson. 

Commissioner Strandlie: And Woodson. There's — there's all — there's several other ones. 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Ulfelder. I'm sorry on that point. Right? 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Yeah. I — I well no. Not on that point. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay Mr. Hart, then Mr. Ulfelder, and then Mr. Sargeant. 
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Commissioner Hart: Yes. Thank you. In — in general I — I'm usually very lukewarm about 
drifting over into School Board territory. And it — it can be tempting to do that at times. But our 
statutory role or our role under the ordinance is actually quite limited. I believe though that the 

wording of this motion is actually quite narrow and it does not go over into, you know, perhaps 
school boundary issues or other — other more volatile topics. It really is about whether the 
recommendations in the plan adequately address the capacity need or whether additional 

guidance is needed. I think that's part of our function anyway. We're the ones making the 

recommendations in the Plan. I think this a — maybe this is implicit in what we're doing anyway. 
Some of this in a broader sense is what the Schools Committee has been doing for the last 
several months with meeting with the School Board members in — in the back and with — with 
the School's staff. Some of this, I think, is also consistent with what we're doing once a year on 
CIP anyway. And, I think this — if nothing else, it reinforces for the community that the — the 

Plan is not a static document. It is something that is continually evaluated and we wanna stay on 
top of it. And if we stay within our lane. Looking at the Comp Plan, looking at school capacity 

needs and the guidance in the Plan, there's nothing wrong with that. And I think this — this 
motion lends itself to that. So, while I agree with the sentiment expressed by Commissioner 
Hurley, I think that on this specific wording we're okay. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Sargeant and then Mr. Ulfelder. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. — Commissioner Ulfelder. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: No, you go. Go ahead. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Okay. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: You might say way I was gonna say. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Well I'd like to echo Commissioner Hart's comments to with regard to 

the Schools Committee and where we're going with that. And then two things that come out of 
this that come to mind is the — in this bigger picture Plan, the ability to use the bigger picture 
data that schools systems can use as opposed to the limited, you know, window picture that we 
have in most applications. That hurts your ability to plan for a bigger picture and a longer period 
of time and it reduces your flexibility and the school system flexibility in terms of anticipated 
long-term student needs. The second thing is that — and this is one of the — one of the issues of 
the Schools Committee's ongoing work — is looking at how we can alleviate the problem of not 
having enough land that you traditionally need for schools and how you can incorporate those 
school needs that you've identified within planning bigger picture planning process as in 

conjunction with the development community, schools, citizens, and professional planning staff. 
So, I think this is a good motion too. I think that we're okay there. 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Ulfelder. 
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Commissioner Ulfelder: I sort of agree. But it singles out the future buildout of the Merrifield 

Suburban Center Plan. I think we have the exact same issues occurring in other areas where 

we're dealing with rapid buildout and I — I agree that we — we need to have a better and — not a 

better — a more corporative and regular working relationship with school — public school staff 

and Department of Planning and Development and so on. We've been asking for this for a while. 

In connection with development going on at Tysons, I mean this is a big issue for the McLean 

Citizens Association, for example. And it's a growing issue I think in — in the Reston area 

because of the — the level of development we're seeing. And I — therefore I'm gonna vote against 

this because it singles out Merrifield and I would prefer — I don't wanna do that. I wanna see us 

take a look at all of the TSA or other areas that are now in the process of being more rapidly 

developed to — to develop this level of cooperation. And to look at what kind of solutions might 

be needed. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Carter and then back to Mr. Sargeant. 

Commissioner Carter: I — I think this is more a reminder of what we should be doing rather than 

a — a motion against the other — other jurisdictions in the County. So, I'm — I'm gonna vote for 

this for a different reason. But again, I thinks this is a reminder and I hope this is what we're 

doing in all of the areas that need it. Not — not just Reston or McLean, but Mount Vernon and 

some of those other areas where we hope development. This is an issue is — is keeping our 

planning for schools or planning for these sites part of our ongoing thinking. So I'm gonna 

support this but — and the thought that this is a reminder to all of us that this should be constant 

throughout the County. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Sargeant and then Ms. Hurley. 

Commissioner Sargeant: I — I think this will be useful guidance in terms of what we are putting 

together through the Schools Committee process, which will include members of the School 

Board and having their input while as we move forward with our final Schools Committee 

recommendations which this will be — this will be useful from my prospective. And our 

recommendations will be Countywide. So they — they should be able to apply to, you know, 

other areas that are in need of this kind attention for school facilities. So I — that's why I'll be 

voting for it. 

Chairman Murphy: Ms. Hurley. 

Commissioner Hurley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I understand — again parsing the whole thing, 

if you're directing staff to coordinate with staff that's all fine and good and what we should be 

doing. What particularly concerns me is that last clause — and further Mr. Chairman that staff be 

directed to engage potentially effective stakeholders, with correction, throughout the conduct of 

this evaluation. This is saying the staff is supposed to go out there and deal directly with all of 

these angry schools that don't want the boundary changes or that are afraid that they'll — all those 
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sorts of things. I really don't think we wanna throw staff into that mess, I'll leave it at that words, 
dealing directly with the affected communities/stakeholders is the job of the schools staff and I 
don't believe that the Planning Commission and the planning staff should be doing that at all. 

Chairman Murphy: Ms. Byron do you have a comment? 

Ms. Byron: I agree with that last part. 

Chairman Murphy: That's why I called on you. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Mr. Chairman. I have a suggestion. So... 

Chairman Murphy: Did you want to say something Barbara? 

Ms. Byron: Yeah. I think the Planning... 

Chairman Murphy: Or do you want to rest on your laurels? 

Ms. Byron: Yeah, I know right. Stop there. You know I really — obviously, we wanna work and 
coordinate with them and there are intersections with the — with land use planning that we wanna 
keep engage with them on. But I do think that it is their responsibility to engage the community 

on things related to how they accommodate the capacity issues for the children. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. I — I specifically used the word useful guidance because that's what it 
will be. To — to the point the school system is — is an authority on its own, you know, 

independence and merit. I — I — and I'm sure they will, you know, expect us to respect that as we 
go forward. 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Ulfelder. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: I — I have a suggestion. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: In the line that says on an evaluation of future buildout of the Merrifield 

Suburban Center Plan and other areas of Fairfax County that are experiencing or facing similar 

rapid — similar rapid growth of school populations. 

Chairman Murphy: Phil? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Well it's — I'm — I'm... 
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Commissioner Ulfelder: You're torn. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Yeah. It's — this is a — what we're trying to do here is build 

on the work of this — this task force, you know, year longs effort that comes out of their — their 

work. And I — I guess I have a concern about broadening this into areas that have not had the 

intensity of review that this has had. And so, I think that's the place for the Schools Committee 

and — and our recommendations coming out of the Schools Committee. But this is specific to — 

specifically intended to build on the momentum and the analysis that was undertaken as part of 

the task force process. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: In other words, you're saying because the task force identified that in 

the present time that this is gonna have a big impact on schools, even though we know from the 

Plan in Tysons that was adopted in 2010 and what was adopted in Reston in 2014, that we were 

gonna — and are starting to experience similar issues. I mean I think they're at the same. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Let me maybe just react a little bit more. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Sure. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: From an implementation standpoint, to stand up a process of 

— that — that is driven by this motion, means that the — this could be — what I'm trying to say is 

this could be pilot effort recognizing that there are broader needs to be addressed in partnership 

with the schools system. Specific again, to the Comprehensive Plan and to the — the land use 

considerations. You know what — so I am torn because I — there's probably no one else on this — 

this Commission that recognizes the broader need of the — this — the County in this regard. But I 

also don't want it to get so big that — and then we lose the benefit of the intensity of analysis that 

was done as part of the — this particular study. So, I'm torn. 

Commissioner Hart: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yeah. Mr. Hart. 

Commissioner Hart: Thank you. I — I was going to say I agreed with Commissioner Carter and I 

don't think that a motion about Merrifield is necessarily a suggestion that Merrifield is a higher 

priority than Tysons or Reston or should be studies to the exclusion of the others. But tonight — I 

would say tonight's the Merrifield night — tonight we got other things too as I see the agenda. But 

the — the Merrifield Plan Amendment is what was advertised... 

Commissioner Ulfelder: I understand. 

Commissioner Hart: What we had a public hearing about, what we heard from people about, 

what the task force did, and now we're voting on text and we're doing some follow-on motions. 

And I don't think a Merrifield follow-on motion is necessarily the appropriate place to add 

references to Tysons or Reston or Bull Run Post Office Road for that matter. You know, whatever 

it is that's happening, we can deal with these things in turn or — or collectively. But not as a part 

of this. I was gonna suggest though and I hope we're getting closer to a consensus as spill out 
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guts on this, that — to —to alleviate some of Commissioner Hurley's concern and some of Ms. 
Byron's apprehension. IN THE NEXT TO LAST LINE WHERE THERE'S A SEMICOLON, 
GUIDANCE IS NEEDED, SEMICOLON, JUST PUT A PERIOD THERE. STRIKE THE REST 
OF IT. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Yeah. I was gonna suggest... 

Commissioner Hart: Then take that out and then maybe — maybe — maybe everyone's on board? 
We can go to the — we can finish this up to the Board with some sense of unity and purpose and 
looking ahead. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: The only other thought I had was to put, support the school 
system and the engagement of— of stakeholders. But I'm comfortable with that — that change. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Mr. Chairman. I — I think Mr. Hart has come up with a good — a good 
compromise and a good solution there. 

Chairman Murphy: Comments from staff? Okay. Everybody... 

Commissioner Ulfelder: [Inedible]. 

Chairman Murphy: Is everybody onboard with this or is anyone wanna make a comment that you 
go on the record objecting to it? 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Look, I'll — I'll — I will — I will support this with the change. But again, 
Tysons is further — the development here that's gonna produce these kids is down the road. The 
development is going on in Tysons now and the kids are showing up in schools outside Tysons. 
And there's no clear schedule yet as to when we've gonna have schools in Tysons to service — to 
provide education for those kids. And — so I — this is fine. If it — if in the end it results in the level 
of corporation and comes up with some ideas that can be used across the County and in other 
areas and hopefully in some of those areas sooner than they need to be used in — in Merrifield. 
But I agree with — I — I had the same thought that Commissioner Hart raised when I made my 
suggestion and I — I understand that — that this is the focus of tonight which is this particular Plan 
Amendment for Merrifield and therefore I — I will go ahead and vote for it as it is — as it is 
revised. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: As it's been revised. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Yes. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Thank you. 

Chairman Murphy: All we had to do all this time was delete a semicolon. I wish I had thought of 
that. Ms. Hurley? 
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Commissioner Hurley: I just wanted to note in the spirit of cooperation I won't vote against the 

motion. I'll simply abstain. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. Further discussion of the motion? All those in favor of recommending 

to the Board of Supervisors that they adopt follow-on motion five, Merrifield Areawide School 

Assessments, as articulated by Mr. Niedzielski-Eichner and amended by the Planning 

Commissioners, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Ms. Hurley abstains and one abstention from Mr. 

Tanner we know that. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: And Mr. Chairman, if I could. I wanna thank my colleagues 

for your thoughtful consideration of the — these follow-on motions. I also wanted to thank, as I 

have previously, staff their outstanding work on this the task force your work was just 

phenomenal. Your leadership was particularly phenomenal. And I think this — this outcome is one 

I hope in building on the concept of synergy reflects the best of what we do together as apposed 

what we could do individually. 

Chairman Murphy: Thank you very much. Thank you, task force. And anyone else? 

Commissioner Strandlie: Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. 

Commissioner Strandlie: Thank you. I did have two additional follow-on motions but — relating 

to the consideration of the zoning applications that were to follow. But I just wanted to — to — I'll 

just have a conversation and then maybe I won't need to make those. So, I —1 emailed them to 

you earlier. I just want to thank the task force, Charlie Hall and Fran Wallingford for making sure 

that Mason District communities were heard. They were not at the table. Hopefully, in the future 

we could make sure that all stakeholders are — are included whether or not they're in — within the 

land area. The one thing that I am concerned about is making sure that the resulting zoning 

applications, which is where the — the rubber hits the road is actually that Mason District 

surrounding communities, which are right across the street — Camelot and areas over around 

Route 50, and on Gallows are actually consulted as well the Mason District Land Use Committee 

on those — on those considerations because that's huge. So as long as we can make sure that that 

happens, I won't go into two more follow-on motions and we'll be done. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Strandlie: But thanks. Thank you to everyone. I'm really looking forward to it. 

I'm looking forward to great prosperity in — in this area and it's — it's a great opportunity for that 

community. 
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Chairman Murphy: I echo all those comments. This was a herculean task to say the least and the 
outcome was tremendous, and the staff did a great job on this as did the task force and our 

complements to all those who participated. 

The first, second, third, and fourth motions carried by a vote of 9-0-1. Commissioner Cortina 
was absent from the meeting. Commissioner Tanner abstained from the vote. Commissioner 

Clarke was absent from the vote. 

The fifth motion carried by a vote of 8-0-2. Commissioner Cortina was absent from the meeting. 
Commissioners Tanner and Hurley abstained from the vote. Commissioner Clarke was absent 
from the vote. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

Commissioner Migliaccio announced the deferral of the public hearing for PCA 2002-LE-005, 

ALWADI, LLC, to a date certain of October 17, 2019. 

// 

PCA 84-L-083-02 — THE UNITED COMMUNITY OF MUSLIMS OF THE UNITED STATES 
OF AMERICA 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Migliaccio: I have a public hearing that was, at the request of the applicant, be 
moved this evening. It is PCA 84-L-083-02 The United Community of Muslims of the United 

States of America. The applicant had asked to move this to a date certain of next year. Therefore, 
Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION DEFER PCA — PCA 84-L-
083-02 TO A DATE CERTAIN OF JANUARY 8TH, 2020. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Hart. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in favor 

of the motion to defer the public hearing on this application, PCA 84-L-083-02, to a date certain 
of January 8th, 2020, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

The motion carried by a vote of 11-0. Commissioner Cortina was absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 
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/I 

RZ/FDP 2016-PR-023 — ROBERT H. PEARSON, JR., R.H. PEARSON, INC. AND HOWARD 
WALLACH, TRUSTEE FOR THE WALLACH LIVING TRUST 
(Decision Only) (Public Hearing on this application was held on September 11, 2019) 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Let's — let's do this motion for the Pearson application to 
rezone. It's RZ/FDP 2016-PR-023. Mr. Chairman, the applicants request approval to rezone the 
subject 3.42-acre site from the R-1 District to the PDH-4 District, to permit the development of 
eleven single-family detached lots. Excuse me. The proposed development would result in an 
overall density of 3.21 dwelling units per acre. We have received extensive community feedback 

on this application in both writing and certainly at last week's public hearing. I just — I wanna 
commend a spirited representation of the matters of concern to the adjoining communities and 
the articulate way in which those concerns were presented and the advocacy that was used to 
present those positions. In fact, we received a set of recommendations let — late this afternoon 

from Mr. Robert Cox who represents the Madrillon Springs Homeowners Association, with 
detail suggestions for improvements to the proffers associated with this application. I think this — 
the concerns can be summarized as proximity of some of the proposed lots and homes to existing 
lots and homes. Secondly, the road connectivity and the risk of cut-through traffic and associated 
safety, and then finally stormwater management and the implication — potential implications of 
water flowing through other segments of the community. I would note that in each of these areas, 
the changes were made to the proffers. They were changes that you — that the community may or 
may not be satisfied with, but there were changes made in response to concerns that were rest — 
that were raised. Specific to, for example, to stormwater management, a proffer was significantly 
modified to provide for a more — the most conservative storage capacity for the runoff water 

associated with the site, such that the runoff from the site would — I have been assured by staff 
that implementing this proffer the — the runoff of the site would actually be less than is currently, 
the runoff. There is a staff report that was done that I asked to respond to the questions that were 
raised at the hearing and also in the written statements that we received. And that staff report I 
just would ask Mr. Chairman and staff to be incorporated for the record and easily accessible to 
the community, particularly in light of the fact that there will be a public hearing next week with 
the Board of Supervisors. I encourage the community to review the proffers and work closely 
with Supervisor Smyth's office if you feel like there are improvements to — that — that can be 
made to strengthen your interest or strengthen the proffers in relation your concerns and interests. 
Mr. Chairman, I request the applicants confirm for the record, their agreement to the proposed 

development conditions dated August 29th, 2019. 

David R. Gill, Applicant's Agent, Wire Gill, LLP: Yes. My name is David Gill from Wire 

Gill, here on behalf of behalf of the applicant and we confirm our acquiesce to the 
development conditions, so dated. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Thank you, Mr. Gill. I MOVE THAT THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
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APPROVE RZ 2016-PR-023, CONSISTENT WITH PROFFERS DATED SEPTEMBER 

19TH, 2019. 

Commissioners Hart and Tanner: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Hart. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those 

in favor... 

Commissioner Hart: Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. 

Commissioner Hart: I did have a discussion. I — I maybe be I should have jumped in but I 
wasn't sure when we were doing verbatim and not. We got a memo today with some 

changes to the proffers. I'm fine with those. I was gonna make one suggestion before this 

goes to the Board. One of the proffers that was revised was to allow the easements for the 

next-door neighbors for maintenance. There's a clause in that sentence that said, with 

respect to future improvements and it's — it isn't — it shouldn't be just with respect to 

future improvements. It should be just for anything. Cleaning the gutters out or 

something. Those words perhaps could be deleted, and everything is fine and it — it's not 

then limiting the easement use to future construction. But it would allow for ordinary 

homeowner maintenance. The reference to maintenance in conjunction with future 

improvements is still too narrow. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. Gill, do you have a point of view on that that you 

can express? 

Mr. Gill: I'm fine with that. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: You're fine with that? 

Mr. Gill: Yes. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Okay. 

Commissioner Hart: Thank you. 

Chairman Murphy: Further discussion of the motion? All those... 

Commissioner Tanner: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. 

Commissioner Tanner: Sorry. I was not present for the public hearing. I will be abstaining 

as well. 
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Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Migliaccio: Mr. Chairman, the same. 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Migliaccio. Okay. All those in favor of the motion to recommend 

to the Board of Supervisors that it approve RZ 2016-PR-023, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Two abstentions. Mr. Migliaccio and Mr. 

Tanner. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. Chairman the second note — motion. I MOVE 

THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVE FDP 2016-PR-023, SUBJECT TO 

THE DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS DATED AUGUST 29TH, 2019. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Hart. Discussion? All those in favor of the motion to 

approve FDP 2016-PR-023, subject to the Board's approval of the rezoning, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Same abstentions. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: And finally, Mr. Chairman. I MOVE THAT THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

APPROVAL OF THE WAIVER OF SECTION 11-302 OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 

TO PERMIT A PRIVATE STREET THAT EXCEEDS 600 FEET IN LENGTH. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Hart. Discussion? All those in favor of that motion, 

say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Same abstentions. 

Each motion carried by a vote of 9-0-2. Commissioners Migliaccio and Tanner abstained from 

the vote. Commissioner Cortina was absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

II 
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Commissioner Migliaccio announced the Planning Commission had received minutes for March 
and April 2019, and he intended to move the approval of those minutes at the October 24, 2019 
public hearing. 

// 

PA 2019-IV-RH1 — COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT (OAKWOOD ROAD SENIOR 
HOUSING)  

(Decision Only) (Public Hearing on this application was held on September 12, 2019) 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Migliaccio: Secondly, Mr. Chairman. I do have a decision only this evening for a 
plan amendment. It was last week, and I would like to thank Commissioner Hart for pinch-
hitting for me since I was not here at the public hearing. and Meghan Van Dam for presenting 

and for Sophia Fisher for working on this over — over the many months. Also, I would like to 
thank my fellow Commissioners. I did watch the tape so I'm able to speak on this. I would like 
to thank Commissioner Ulfelder for his comments about the outreach. And just — we did receive 
a letter today that I would like to submit for the record from APA, the applicant. And it pretty 

much goes through the outreach that they had done. I'd like to thank the speakers that came that 
evening, especially Mr. Barmil and he's actually part of one of the working groups that 
Supervisor McKay put together with the many people in the community, but most of the directly 
impacted people in the road right there. And they've met three times with the applicant. They've 
also had a sit-down meeting with Supervisor McKay. So, they've had a chance to express their 

concerns and their opinions on this plan amendment. I'm trying to go through and... 

Commissioner Ulfelder: And I understand — and I understand they're having a further meeting. 

Commissioner Migliaccio: They'll be — since this is just a plan amendment, they'll be many 

more meetings going forward. They had a site walkthrough for a couple of hours also. 

Commissioner Cortina is not here, but I would like to thank her for bringing up the pedestrian 

connectivity and other issues that will be more — better addressed at the rezoning stage of the 
PCA for this one. This is pretty simple on Oakwood Road. It is for senior housing. It's for 150 
units of affordable senior housing. It's very close to the Van Dorn Metro. Many of the issues that 
Mr. Barmil brought up will be addressed when we get to the PCA portion of this. Therefore Mr. 
Chairman I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADOPT PLAN AMENDMENT 2019-IV-RH1, PER THE 

RECOMMENDATION IN THE STAFF REPORT DATED AUGUST 22ND, 2019. 

Commissioner Hart: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Hart. Is there a discussion of that motion? All those in favor 
of the motion to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it adopt PA 2019-IV-RH1, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 
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Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

The motion carried by a vote of 10-0. Commissioner Strandlie was not present for the vote. 

Commissioner Cortina was absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

I/ 

RZ 2018-HM-020 - APA PROPERTIES NO. 6, L.P.  

(Decision Only) (Public Hearing on this application was held on September 18, 2019) 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Carter: Yes. Thank you. This is... 

Chairman Murphy: Mic. 

Commissioner Carter: I pressed it, but it didn't go on. Yeah. There we go. So, this is RZ 2018-

HM-020. It's called APA Properties Number 6, L.P. also known as Isaac Newton Square. I'm not 

gonna repeat what I said last night. I think we'll just move — move on. There were two issues left 

last night. One had to do with the soccer field and its material and one had to do with the 

stormwater management. There are no amendments to the proffers that I think you have, but the 

— the gist of it was Proffer 28 about the stormwater management and this applied — the old 

regulations applied to the existing development, not to the new development. And so that's been 

clarified in the Proffer 28 v. And the second one is Proffer 37 B. iii — this is about the design of 

the soccer field. The issue was the crumb rubber and so it now reads — as — as this was a copy 

from the Tysons case, word for word, except for moving up the decision a bit. So it says, the 

soccer field will contain synthetic all-weather turf, netting, fencing, two player benches, field 

striping, one set of goals, commitment — containment netting, maintenance access, field lights, 

and other design considerations. And here is the new language. For the Onsite Athletic Field 

consistent with FCPA specifications in effect at the time of the FDP approval rather than site 

plan, which is what we did on the Tysons case. And then the last sentence, again, it further 

clarifies in effect at the time of the FDP approval. So, with those changes I'm ready to move on 

this case. If I can find my motions. Here we go. 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. Ms. Strandlie. 

Commissioner Strandlie: I just want to say thank you to Commissioner Carter for your 

indulgence. I will support your — your motion tonight and I hope that we can have the further 

conversations that the Chair — Mr. Chairman mentioned last night. Was that last night? About 

making sure that we have — and there's no staff here. Making sure that we have... 

Commissioner Carter: We're all by ourselves. So... 

Chairman Murphy: They heard what we were gonna discuss. 
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Commissioner Strandlie: Make — making sure that we have an understanding of who actually 
makes the decision on what the composition of the — the athletic fields are. And — cause I think 
there're a discrepancy from what we heard last night. Is it the Health Director? Is it the Park 
Authority? And what their process is? And it would be helpful to know, you know — actually with 
the staff report that includes a new athletic field have there been any changes? So we don't have 
to ask. Just have that. But I don't anyone to ask that to because there's no one there. So, with 
that, I will support your motion and thank you. 

Commissioner Carter: And — and I do think the technology is already changing as — as I 
mentioned last night in particularly in Arizona with the baseball field there. Anyway. This is a 
motion to approve... 

Commissioner Hart: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Mr. Hart. 

Commissioner Hart: Yeah... 

Chairman Murphy: Hold on just a second... 

Commissioner Hart: As long as we're all interrupting. I — I recuse myself on this case. I'm — I'm 
still recused. I'm not gonna vote. I'm not gonna participate. I'm just sitting here. Thank you. 

Chairman Murphy: We noticed. Okay. Go ahead, please. 

Commissioner Carter: Okay. I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. NUMBER ONE. APPROVAL OF RZ 2018-HM-020 
AND THE ASSOCIATED CONCEPTUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, SUBJECT TO THE 
EXECUTION OF PROFFERS CONSISTENT DATED WITH THOSE — CONSISTENT WITH 
THOSE DATED AUGUST 191-", 2019. 

Commissioner Tanner: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Tanner. Is there a discussion of that motion? Oh yeah, we 
have to verify the... 

Commissioner Carter: It doesn't say that on there. But okay. 

Andrew Painter, Applicant's Agent, Walsh, Colucci, Lubeley & Walsh, P.C.: Mr. Chairman, I 
believe — Andrew Painter with the Law Firm of Walsh, Colucci, on behalf of the applicant. I 

believe that Commissioner Carter said, I think August 19th. The correct date I think should be 
September 19th... 

Commissioner Carter: SEPTEMBER 19114... 

Mr. Painter: 2000 the 9t  —2019. 2019. 
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Commissioner Carter: That's what I get for just reading these things. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Carter: I that was wrong when I was reading it. But that's what it says. 

Chairman Murphy: You haven't moved that fast in a long time. I am impressed. 

Commissioner Migliaccio: He doesn't want to come back. 

Chairman Murphy: Yeah. He doesn't want to come back. 

Commissioner Carter: It matters, doesn't it? I think it does. Okay. Number two. Approval of the 

waivers and modifications contained in the handout... 

Chairman Murphy: Wait. We haven't voted on that yet. All those in favor of the motion to 

recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it approve RZ 2018-HM-020, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Mr. Carter again. 

Commissioner Carter: Number two. APPROVAL OF THE WAIVERS AND MODIFICATIONS 

CONTAINED IN THE HANDOUT DISTRIBUTED TO YOU THIS EVENING DATED 

SEPTEMBER 18TH, 2019, WHICH WILL BE MADE PART OF THE RECORD. 

Commissioner Tanner: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Tanner. Is there a discussion? All those in favor of that 

motion, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

Each motion carried by a vote of 10-0. Commissioner Hart recused himself from the vote. 

Commissioner Cortina was absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

'-

 

ORDER OF THE AGENDA  

Secretary Migliaccio established the following order of the agenda: 
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AR 89-D-001-03 —THE EAGLE FAMILY LLC; September 19, 2019 
CHARLOTEE FREDETTE SMITH EAGLE; FREDERICK SMITH TRUST UNDER WILL 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF CHARLOTTE FREDETTE SMITH EAGLE: CUMBERLAND 
TRUST, TRUSTEE 

1. AR 89-D-001-03 — THE EAGLE FAMILY LLC; CHARLOTEE FREDETTE 
SMITH EAGLE; FREDERICK SMITH TRUST UNDER WILL FOR THE 
BENEFIT OF CHARLOTTE FREDETTE SMITH EAGLE: CUMBERLAND 
TRUST, TRUSTEE 

2. AR 85-V-002-04 — MARTIN B. JAR VIS, JR. TR 

The order was accepted without objection. 

// 

AR 89-D-001-03 — THE EAGLE FAMILY LLC; CHARLOTEE FREDETTE 
SMITH EAGLE; FREDERICK SMITH TRUST UNDER WILL FOR THE  
BENEFIT OF CHARLOTTE FREDETTE SMITH EAGLE: CUMBERLAND  
TRUST, TRUSTEE — A&F District Renewal Appl. authorized by Chapter 115 
(County Code), effective June 30, 1983 to permit renewal of a previously 
approved agricultural and forestal district. Located at 8008 Georgetown Pike, 
McLean, 22102 on approx. 85.98 ac. of land zoned R E. Please call the Zoning 
Evaluation Division at 703-324-1290 after September 19, 2019 to obtain the A&F 
District Advisory Committee and Planning Commission recommendations. Tax 
Map 20-2 ((1)) 8Z, 13Z, 14Z, 16Z, 48Z and 20-2 ((13)) 4Z and 5Z. 
DRANESVILLE DISTRICT. PUBLIC HEARING. 

There were no disclosures by Commission members. 

Commissioner Ulfelder asked that Chairman Murphy ascertain whether there were any speakers 
for this application. There being none, he asked that presentations by staff and the applicant be 
waived, and the public hearing closed. No objections were expressed; therefore, Chairman 
Murphy closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner Ulfelder for action on this case. 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Well thank you, Mr. Chairman. Now that we finished the sausage 
making, we can get the work done. And — the Eagle family is back for another eight-year renewal 
of the 86-acre Eagle Local Agricultural and Forestal District. This wonderful property, a majority 
of which the family has owned since 1967, is located off Georgetown Pike along the banks of 
the Potomac River just to the east of the Madeira School. The applicant's commitment to 
continuing long term conservation and forestal use of the land in the district, as well as their 
commitment to protect the historic viewshed along this stretch of the Potomac River, has been 
accomplished through the dedication to the United States of America and the Northern Virginia 
Regional Park Authority of scenic/conservation easements over a majority of the site. In 
addition, the family has consistently supported native forest dwelling wildlife on the property, by 
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AR 89-D-001-03 —THE EAGLE FAMILY LLC; September 19, 2019 

CHARLOTEE FREDETTE SMITH EAGLE; FREDERICK SMITH TRUST UNDER WILL 

FOR THE BENEFIT OF CHARLOTTE FREDETTE SMITH EAGLE: CUMBERLAND 

TRUST, TRUSTEE 

planting trees that provide food sources for local wildlife as well as a number of other habitat 

enhancing improvements. It remains largely undisturbed. We all owe the Eagle family a deep 

debt of gratitude for their ongoing stewardship of this wonderful forested and scenic area and 

their commitment to permanently protecting it for future generations. With that, Mr. Chairman, I 

MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS THAT AR 89-D-001-03 BE APPROVED AND APPENDIX F OF THE 

FAIRFAX COUNTY CODE BE AMENDED TO RENEW THE EAGLE LOCAL 

AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTAL DISTRICT, SUBJECT TO ORDINANCE PROVISIONS 

DATED AUGUST 29TH, 2019. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in 

favor of the motion to approve AR 89-D-001-03, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion — motion carries. 

The motion carried by a vote of 11-0. Commissioner Cortina was absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

II 

AR 85-V-002-04 — MARTIN B. JARVIS, JR. TR — A&F District Renewal Appl. 

authorized by Chapter 115 (County Code), effective June 30, 1983 to permit 

renewal of a previously approved agricultural and forestal district. Located at 

10808 and 10816 Harley Rd., Lorton, 22079 on approx. 41.5 ac. of land zoned R 
E. Please call the Zoning Evaluation Division at 703-324-1290 after September 

19, 2019 to obtain the A&F District Advisory Committee and Planning 

Commission recommendations. Tax Map 118-2 ((1)) 11Z and 118-2 ((2)) 1Z. 

MOUNT VERNON. PUBLIC HEARING. 

There were no disclosures by Commission members. 

Commissioner Clarke asked that Chairman Murphy ascertain whether there were any speakers 

for this application. There being none, he asked that presentations by staff and the applicant be 

waived, and the public hearing closed. No objections were expressed; therefore, Chairman 

Murphy closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner Clarke for action on this case. 

Start Verbatim Transcript) 
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AR 85-V-002-04 — MARTIN B. JARVIS, JR. TR September 19, 2019 

II 

Commissioner Clarke: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This evening we have the renewal of a — 
agricultural and forestal district. Forty-one point five acres that we have at 10818 (sic) Harley 
Road and 10806 Lorton Road. And we waima thank Mr. Jarvis for being here and willing to — to 
do this renewal. So with that Mr. Chairman, I'd like to go directly to the motion. And the motion 
reads that I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS THAT AR 85-V-002-04 BE APPROVED IN APPENDIX F OF THE 
FAIRFAX COUNTY CODE BE AMENDED TO RENEW THE JARVIS LOCAL 
AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTAL DISTRICT, SUBJECT TO THE ORDINANCE 
PROVISION — PROVISIONS DATED JULY 10TH, 2019. 

Commission Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion? All those in favor of the 
motion to approve AR 85-V-002-04, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

The motion carried by a vote of 11-0. Commissioner Cortina was absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

II 
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UR, /kA 
Signature of Nota 

Commission expiration: flori ) zoz.Li 

Notary registration number:  -1 I I LH I  

CLOSING September 19, 2019 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:11 p.m. 

Peter F. Murphy, Chairman 

James T. Migliaccio, Secretary 

Audio and video recordings of this meeting are available at the Planning Commission Office, 

12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 552, Fairfax, VA 22035. 

Minutes by: Samantha Lawrence 

Approved on: March 4, 2020 

frA-(4k-P-- (tre—cretoit  
Jacob L. Caporaletti, Clerk to the 

Fairfax County Planning Commission 

County of Fairfax 

Commonwealth of Virginia 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day o 

Ja Caporaletti. 
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